
    

2014-0401 Council Meeting Minutes 
- 1 - 

TOWN OF SOUTH PRAIRIE 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

TUESDAY, APRIL 1, 2014, 7:00 PM 
South Prairie Town Hall 

121 NW Washington Street 
 

The following is a condensation of the proceedings and is not a verbatim transcript. 

  
CALL TO ORDER: 
Mayor Tony Caldwell called to order and presided over the Regular Council Meeting of Tuesday, April 
1, 2014, at 7:00 PM. 
 
SWEAR IN VICKY WATKINS TO COUNCIL POSITION #5: 
Marla Nevill administered the Oath of Office for Vicky Watkins, Council Position #5. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
Council Members:   Stu Terry, Les Rossich and Vicky Watkins were present. 
Also in attendance:  Lisa Heyerdahl, Pierce County Library; Brian and Melissa Morrow, Brian’s Vintage 
Trailers; Steve Dick, Global Equipment Services; Candy Ford and Jose Romero, Carports of Washington; 
Jeff Dahl, Chuck Sundsmo, Ross Watkins, Barbara Wigton and Kirsten Worth, citizens; Mart Kask, 
Town Planner; and Marla Nevill, Clerk-Treasurer. 

 
FLAG SALUTE: 
Mayor Tony Caldwell requested everyone stand for the “Pledge of Allegiance.” 
 
REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF AGENDA FOR APRIL 1, 2014: 
� Councilor Les Rossich moved to approve the Agenda for April 1, 2014.   Councilor Stu Terry 

seconded the motion.  Mayor Tony Caldwell stated we would need to recess the Council meeting to 
April 22, 2014.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
PIERCE COUNTY LIBRARY – PIERCE COUNTY READS: 
Lisa Heyerdahl, Pierce County Library, handed out flyers and gave a presentation regarding the Pierce 
County Reads program.  She stated there are numerous events planned throughout Pierce County and all 
events focus on themes from the Pierce County READS 2014 best-selling book “Wild” by award-winning 
author Cheryl Strayed.  She requested the Town approve a proclamation in support of the program. 
� Councilor Stu Terry moved to approve the Pierce County READS proclamation for 2014 and 

authorized the Mayor to sign the proclamation.  Councilor Vicky Watkins seconded the motion.  
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
ENGINEERING REPORT: 
1) Mayor Tony Caldwell gave a status update on the segregation of the fire station/community center 

property and asked the Council to review the information for the meeting on April 22, 2014.  
Discussion followed.   

2) Mayor Tony Caldwell gave an update on the phone company relocating their lines in front of the fire 
station.  Discussion followed. 

 
PLANNER REPORT: 
1) Site Plan Review Application for Carports of Washington, Inc.: 
Candy Ford, Vice President Carports of Washington, Inc., stated they are a carport manufacturer and 
installer and currently have operations in five states.  Mayor Tony Caldwell asked her to explain their 
operation.  Candy Ford stated they assemble and install steel carports.  She said they do not manufacture 



    

2014-0401 Council Meeting Minutes 
- 2 - 

the steel.  There is some welding involved; and they manufacture their own trim.  She said the yard would 
be for storage; and the office would be used for typical office work.  Councilor Stu Terry asked about 
painting on the site.  Candy Ford said they are not set up for that.  Councilor Less Rossich asked if they 
would be operating a second shift.  Candy Ford said the hours of operation would be 8:00 AM – 4:30 
PM.  She said the majority of the crew would be out at the job site.  Discussion followed.  Mart Kask 
said the letter Candy Ford left with the Town Clerk states this is manufacturing.  Jose Romero, Carports 
of Washington, Inc., Principal, stated they use components that are already made.  Candy Ford said 
they do not have a factory.  They don’t make all of the components; they just put them together.  Mart 
Kask asked who the owner is.  Candy Ford stated the owners are Mr. Romero and me.  She said the 
parent company is J.C. Holdings 1, LLC.  Mart Kask said the application needs to be changed and the 
owner would have to sign the application authorizing Candy Ford as the agent.  Chuck Sundsmo asked 
why that is relevant.  Mart Kask said the property owner authorizes an agent to act on their behalf.  He 
said another issue is surface water management.  How is the surface water handled on the property?  
Candy Ford asked why a potential occupant is required to supply this to an existing property.  Mart 
Kask said the use is different than it was before; and therefore it is a new usage.  Candy Ford stated we 
are not assembling anything on the site.  Mart Kask said a new use has to be approved by the Town 
Council.  Steve Dick said our attorney would have a quick go at that.  Mart Kask stated Pierce County 
requires a new occupancy permit for a new use.  Chuck Sundsmo asked if there was an application for 
that.  Mart Kask stated a SEPA (State Environmental Policy Act) application is not required.  Chuck 
Sundsmo stated there is no additional impervious service being added.  He said all of this was taken care 
of a long time ago.  Mart Kask stated they would have to bring in a letter from their engineer.  Chuck 
Sundsmo stated that is not required per the State code.  Mayor Tony Caldwell said we might have to 
hold a separate meeting regarding this issue.  Discussion followed.  Steve Dick said hiring an engineer 
would cost a couple thousand dollars.  Chuck Sundsmo asked why these people were being harassed.  
Candy Ford stated we are not proposing any changes.  Steve Dick stated you are making a potential 
buyer jump through hoops and add a bunch of costs.  Chuck Sundsmo stated you are making them jump 
through hoops.  He said if these folks walk away then…  Mayor Tony Caldwell said none of us have the 
expertise; so we have to rely on our Town Planner and Town Engineer for guidance.  Chuck Sundsmo 
asked if the engineer had been able to comment on this application.  Mayor Tony Caldwell said the 
engineer was not able to be here.  Discussion followed.  Candy Ford stated she did not agree with the 
engineering requirement.  She said she had a hard time fulfilling what was requested.  She stated she has 
not heard of having to meet these kinds of requirements.  She said the money required should be to look 
up the information.  She came in two weeks ago; and she has to make a decision within two weeks 
whether they are going to purchase the property.  Chuck Sundsmo asked if they could appeal to the 
Council to take a vote.  Councilor Les Rossich asked what would be the ramifications for approving the 
application.  Mart Kask stated we could not approve until we have the occupancy permit.  Chuck 
Sundsmo suggested the Town Council approve with the caveat that the applicant would obtain an 
occupancy permit from Pierce County.  He said the applicant could get conditional approval pending the 
occupancy permit.  Mart Kask stated the Pierce County Fire Marshall might require a fire escape from 
the second floor.  Discussion followed.  Councilor Stu Terry stated he thought it would be nice to have a 
new business in town; but there are a couple of things we have to consider.  Candy Ford stated they are 
not adding anything to the site, maybe down the road.  Councilor Stu Terry said another issue is the 
noise.  Candy Ford said the steel goes in and out; but the manufacturing would be inside the building.  
Councilor Stu Terry stated we would not want a noise issue.  He said another issue would be safety.  
Councilor Vicky Watkins stated we are a small family-oriented town.  As a concerned citizen, she has 
some of the same concerns.  Candy Ford said she grew up in South Prairie.  She said she understands we 
have to listen to the professionals.  Chuck Sundsmo stated that Mart said this application was exempt 
from SEPA.  Mart Kask said exempt from SEPA does not excuse exemption from South Prairie rules.  
He said we have a decibel-level code.  Discussion followed.  Mart Kask stated we have made it very 
clear that we need the following:  1) Check with Pierce County to determine if the occupancy permit is 
sufficient; 2) A statement from the engineer that the surface water management is adequate; and 3) 



    

2014-0401 Council Meeting Minutes 
- 3 - 

Provide a new occupancy permit if required by Pierce County.  He said until those requirements are met, 
he could not sign off as being complete. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
1) Carports of Washington, Inc. – Site Plan Review Application:   
� Councilor Stu Terry moved to approve the site plan application for Carports of Washington, Inc.  

He said he is not clear on the conditions.  Councilor Les Rossich seconded the motion.  Barb 
Wigton said it sounds like the Council has reviewed the application; but everything falls under Pierce 
County.  She said the Council shouldn’t be stalling; but…  Chuck Sundsmo said the Council is 
judicial; but Pierce County would use an examiner.  He said the Council should accept with 
conditions, such as approve with occupancy permit.  He said if they are not changing the impervious 
surface, there is no need for that requirement.  He said the Council should either approve or have 
them move on.  Mart Kask said the applicant needs to bring us the documents so he could sign off 
on the application.  He said the engineer has to sign off on the surface water management; and the 
occupancy is approved by Pierce County.  Mayor Tony Caldwell asked Candy what is her 
timeframe.  Candy Ford stated they have to have approval tonight.  She said she could get the 
occupancy permit from Pierce County.   

� Councilor Stu Terry moved to amend his motion to approve the site plan application for Carports of 
Washington, Inc., with the caveat that the applicant provide the following documentation:  1) 
Occupancy Permit issued by Pierce County; 2) Corrected application listing J.C. Holdings 1, LLC as 
the owner and the owner’s signature authorizing Candy Ford as the representative; and 3) the Town 
Engineer review the paperwork submitted by the applicant to determine adequate surface water 
management.  Chuck Sundsmo said for the sake of time, he could have his civil engineer look at this 
and then have the Town Engineer review their opinion to verify adequacy.  He asked where they 
should submit the paperwork.  Mayor Tony Caldwell said to submit the paperwork to the Town 
Clerk.  Councilor Les Rossich seconded the amended motion.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
PLANNER REPORT CONTINUED:   
2)   Site Plan Review Application for Brian’s Vintage Trailers: 
Mayor Tony Caldwell asked Brian Morrow to give an outline of their business.  Brian Morrow,            
Brian’s Vintage Trailer, said they restore antique travel trailers.  He said most of the shop is 
woodworking.  He said they do not do metal work.  He said that is done by Exterior Metals.  He said they 
rent a paint booth in Tacoma.  He said the hours of operation are Monday through Friday, 8:00 AM to 
4:30 PM; and only on weekends as needed.  Mayor Tony Caldwell stated if any washing is done, they 
would have to install filters.  Brian Morrow said they would be polishing the aluminum.  He said they 
only have two employees.  He said they could not provide any quarterly reports per the business license 
requirements as this is a new business.  Melissa Morrow said people they have talked to think this is 
fabulous.  Brian Morrow stated they have spent the last few weeks just setting up the business.  Mayor 
Tony Caldwell said Jan Van Halder, the property owner could not be her but he called him today from 
Alaska.  He said the Council needed to know if they would be etching the metal.  Discussion followed.  
Melissa Morrow stated people have made positive comments and have said they would make a great 
addition to the Town.  Brian Morrow said he thought the letter from Exterior Metals that allowed them 
to use their restroom facility would be sufficient.  Mayor Tony Caldwell stated they could not keep the 
Sani can on site.  Mart Kask stated you would have to have an agreement.  He said the concern is what 
happens if Exterior Metals packs up and leaves.  Brian Morrow said they have an eight-year lease.  Mart 
Kask asked if the Council felt comfortable with the current agreement for Brian’s Vintage Trailers to use 
the restroom facility at Exterior Metals.  Discussion followed.  Brian Morrow said he never knew that 
building was going to be available at all.  He said he is renting the building; and he should not have to pay 
to install a holding tank.  Mayor Tony Caldwell stated a restroom facility was not required as long as it 
was used as a warehouse; but if the use changed, they would have to install a holding tank and restroom 
facilities.  He said we realize this is in the hands of the property owner, Jan Van Halder.  Melissa 



    

2014-0401 Council Meeting Minutes 
- 4 - 

Morrow asked about using the restroom in the travel trailer.  Councilor Stu Terry stated this does not 
meet our code.  Brian Morrow said we just need to know if we can use the facility.  Councilor Stu 
Terry said if Jan is fully aware of this, then they rented it to you with that knowledge.  Mart Kask stated 
we would need a new certificate of occupancy for the change is use.  Mayor Tony Caldwell asked if this 
issue could be tabled until the property owner is back in town.  He addressed Brian and Melissa Morrow; 
and asked that they not technically sell anything out of the facility until we have a chance to meet with the 
property owner.  Discussion followed.  Mart Kask stated this was previously approved as a warehouse; 
and the dumpster would need to be located inside the building.  Brian Morrow said okay, as long as it’s 
not in his side of the building.  Mart Kask said you can’t have a Sani can; and the use occupancy has to 
be changed.  Mayor Tony Caldwell said we need to have the property owner involved before we can 
move forward.  Brian Morrow said there is not much we can say or do.  Melissa Morrow asked if the 
Council had any objections.  Councilor Stu Terry said all in all, he thought this business would be a 
great addition to the town.  Mayor Tony Caldwell called for a motion to table this issue to April 22, 
2014. 
 
NEW BUSINESS CONTINUED: 
2) Brian’s Vintage Trailers – Site Plan Review Application:   
� Councilor Stu Terry moved to table the Site Plan Review application for Brian’s Vintage Trailers 

until April 22, 2014, 7:00 PM.  Councilor Vicky Watkins seconded the motion.  Discussion 
followed.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
PLANNER’S REPORT CONTINUED: 
3)   South Prairie RV Park Office and/or Club House: 
Tabled until the May 6, 2014 Council Meeting 
 
4)   Status Report on South Prairie RV Park – Relocation of RVs: 
Tabled until the May 6, 2014 Council Meeting 
 
5)   Status Report on Comprehensive Plan, Development Regulations and Critical Areas Code: 
Tabled until the May 6, 2014 Council Meeting 
 
6)   Status Report on the Floodplain Management Audit: 
Tabled until the May 6, 2014 Council Meeting 
 
7)  Status Report on the Shoreline Master Program: 
Mart Kask said the buffer zone of fifty (50’) from the high water mark could be identified when walking 
along the shore.  He stated he and Larry went along the shoreline and took measurements.  He said the 
Department of Ecology (DOE) rejected our fifty (50’) buffer zone and wanted it changed to one hundred 
feet (100’).  He said this renders eleven (11) properties unusable with the fifty foot (50’) buffer zone.  He 
said this is an issue we have to address.  Do you go with the one hundred foot (100’) buffer zone or do 
you want to hang tough with your original fifty foot (50’) buffer zone?  He said the Department of 
Ecology has the final say.  He said it would basically render the road into the last property on SE Third 
Street and several vacant lots on SE Third Street as unbuildable.  Barb Wigton asked how the high-water 
mark is determined.  Mart Kask said it’s basically where the gravel ends and the grass begins.  
Discussion followed.  Mart Kask stated in a meeting we had with Sarah Lukas from the Department of 
Ecology, she was asked how many variances has DOE granted; and her response was none.  Barb 
Wigton said if we wanted to go back to a twenty-five foot (25’) buffer zone, who would make that 
decision?  Mart Kask said the Department of Ecology.  He said the Town of Wilkeson was able to make 
a case and got the twenty-five foot (25’) buffer zone.  He said we will prepare our argument and present it 
to DOE.  We have justification for the fifty foot (50’) buffer zone; because we would not want to 
adversely impact the property owners along the shoreline.  Discussion followed. 



    

2014-0401 Council Meeting Minutes 
- 5 - 

 
Mart Kask said getting back to the issue of Carports of Washington.  He said he had a tough time getting 
Global Equipment Services (GES) to comply with the surface water management requirements.  He said 
GES bought the property from Euro General without requesting any approvals from the Town.  
Discussion followed.           
 
APPROVAL OF REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES OF MARCH 4, 2014: 
� Councilor Stu Terry moved to approve the Regular Council Meeting Minutes of March 4, 2014.  

Councilor Les Rossich seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
APPROVAL OF SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES OF MARCH 5, 2014: 
� Councilor Les Rossich moved to approve the Special Council Meeting Minutes of March 5, 2014.  

Councilor Stu Terry seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
APPROVAL OF BILLS FOR MARCH 2014 IN THE AMOUNT OF $36,172.53: 
� Councilor Stu Terry moved to approve the Bills for March 2014 in the amount of $36,172.53 

(thirty-six thousand one hundred seventy-two dollars and fifty-three cents).  Councilor Les Rossich 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously.  

 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 
1) Review Nuisance Ordinances from Other Jurisdictions – Direct Town Attorney to Draft 

Revised Ordinance – Tabled from the March 4, 2014 Council Meeting: 
� Councilor Stu Terry moved to table this issue until April 22, 2014.  Councilor Les Rossich 

seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
NEW BUSINESS CONTINUED: 
3)   Resignation of Jim Frank, Council Position No. 4: 

a)  “Letters of Interest” will be sought during the month of April 
b)  Council will interview prospective candidates at the May Council Meeting 
c)  Council will give their recommendation to the Mayor at the May Council Meeting 
d)  Prospective candidate will be sworn in to office at the June Council Meeting  

Mayor Tony Caldwell stated the Council would conduct interviews and make recommendations at the 
May Council meeting; and prospective candidates would be sworn into office at the June Council 
meeting.   

                         
4)  Request Council authorization for Mike’s Help Key to evaluate computers at Town Hall for                          
approximately $89 for a service call to determine whether they can be updated to Microsoft 8 or 
whether we have to purchase new computers.  (Microsoft Windows XP Support ends on April 8, 
2014 and computers could be at risk for viruses): 
� Councilor Les Rossich moved to authorize Mike’s Help Key to evaluate computers at the Town Hall 

for approximately $89 for a service call to determine whether they can be updated to Microsoft 8 or 
whether we have to purchase new computers.  Councilor Vicky Watkins seconded the motion.  
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
5)  Council authorization to either upgrade the Town Hall computers’ operating systems to 
Microsoft 8 (approximately $149 for each computer plus service costs) or purchase new    
computers (approximately $1,200 for two computers): 
� Councilor Stu Terry moved to authorize either upgrading the Town Hall computers’ operating 

systems to Microsoft 8 (approximately $149 for each computer plus service costs) or purchase new 
computers (approximately $1,200 for two computers).  Councilor Les Rossich seconded the motion.  
Motion carried unanimously.  



    

2014-0401 Council Meeting Minutes 
- 6 - 

       
CITIZENS’ COMMENTS: 
1) Complaints received regarding charging Yoga Instructor for use of Community Center: 
Tabled until the April 22, 2014 Recessed Council Meeting    
 
MAYOR’S REPORT: 
1)  Update on the Labor Agreement Negotiations 
2)  Update on the East Pierce Fire and Rescue Agreement Negotiations 
Tabled until the April 22, 2014 Recessed Council Meeting 
 
PUBLIC WORKS’ REPORT: 
Tabled until the April 22, 2014 Recessed Council Meeting 
 
CLERK’S REPORT: 
Tabled until the April 22, 2014 Recessed Council Meeting 
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS REPORT: 
Tabled until the April 22, 2014 Recessed Council Meeting 
 
RECESS: 
� At 9:10 PM, Councilor Les Rossich moved to recess the Regular Council Meeting to April 22, 2014.  

Councilor Stu Terry seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
 
 

 
Date Approved:  May 6, 2014  

 


